
West of England LEP Board 
Board Meeting 
 
Tuesday, 21 June 2022, 9.30 am 
To Be Held Virtually 
 
Richard Bonner Arcadis 
Christopher Grier Airbus 
Neil Douglas Viper Innovations 
Dick Penny Independent Consultant 
David Brown The Bristol Port Company 
Katharine Finn (Vice-Chair) PwC 
Mohammed Saddiq Wessex Water 
Sue Rigby Bath Spa University 
Margot Day Buro Happold 
Joanne Rumley Foot Anstey 
Zoe Metcalfe ValueSwift 
Natasha Swinscoe Academic Health Science Network 
Metro Mayor Dan Norris West of England Combined Authority 
Mayor Marvin Rees Bristol City Council 
Cllr Toby Savage South Gloucestershire Council 
Cllr Donald Davies North Somerset Council 
Cllr Kevin Guy Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
  

Subject 
 

Presenting 
 

Pages 
  

1.   Welcome from Chair 
  
Apologies received in advance of the meeting from Chris Grier, 
Neil Douglas, Sue Rigby, Ruth Jefferson, Cllr Kevin Guy, 
Patricia Greer, Will Godfrey. 

  
 

Richard 
Bonner 

 

 
2.   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2022 

  
To approve minutes from the previous meeting. 
 

Richard 
Bonner 

3 - 6 

 
3.   Declarations of Interest 

 
All Board members have a responsibility to treat all 
proposals/projects equally and impartially and must therefore 
declare whether they or their organisation has either a direct 
or indirect interest in any of the projects to be considered by 
the Board.  

Richard 
Bonner 

 

 
 Items for Discussion 

 
  

 
4.   Prem Goyal, Alderman from the City of London 

 
An opportunity to explore ways for the West of England region 

All 7 - 8 

Public Document Pack



to work closely with the City of London   
5.   Regional opportunities around sustainable energy 

generation, including hydrogen 
 
  

  Update on facility which has recently opened at 
Institute of Advanced Automotive Propulsion Systems 
 

  Discussion on sustainable energy and net zero 
opportunities  

 

Gavin 
Edwards, 
University of 
Bath and 
IAAPS 
 
 
All 

9 - 12 

 
6.   UK Shared Prosperity Fund [UKSPF] 

 
 An update on the development of the investment plan  

Rachel 
Pykett 

13 - 16 

 
7.   AOB 

 
  
Process update on the LEP integration  
 

All  

 
 Items for Information 

 
  

 
8.   West of England Growth Hub 

 
 Annual Report Summary  

17 - 20 

 
9.   Papers for July Committees 

 
 Feedback to LEPChair@westofengland-ca.gov.uk in advance of the meeting on 
the 1st July.  

 



 

West of England LEP Board  
 
Wednesday 30 March, 9:30am 
Meeting held “virtually” via Teams 
 
Present: 
Richard Bonner, Arcadis (Chair) 
Katharine Finn, PwC (Vice Chair) 
Prof Sue Rigby, Bath Spa University (Vice Chair) 
Joanne Rumley, Foot Anstey  
Margot Day, Arup 
David Brown, The Bristol Port Company 
Neil Douglas, Viper Innovations 
 
 

Zoe Metcalfe, Atkins 
Mayor Marvin Rees, Bristol City Council 
Cllr Don Davies, North Somerset Council 
Cllr Toby Savage, South Gloucestershire Council 
Mayor Dan Norris, West of England Combined 
Authority 
 

Officers in Attendance: 
Patricia Greer, West of England Combined Authority 
Jess Lee, West of England Combined Authority 
Stephen Bashford, West of England Combined 
Authority 
Mike Jackson, Bristol City Council 
Will Godfrey, Bath & North East Somerset 
 

Dave Perry, South Gloucestershire Council 
Jo Walker, North Somerset Council 
Melissa Houston, West of England Combined Authority 
Stephen Gerrard, West of England Combined 
Authority 
Jack Latkovic, West of England Combined Authority 
Andy Cornelius, South Gloucestershire Council 
 

Also Present: 
Cllr Winston Duguid, Chair of Scrutiny Committee 
Rachel Pykett, West of England Combined Authority 
(item 5 & 6 only) 
 
Apologies: 
Christopher Grier, Airbus 
Natasha Swinscoe, WEAHSN 

 
Andy Bates, Nuclear South West (item 4 only) 
James Cooke, Western Gateway (item 4 only) 
 
 
    
Cllr Kevin Guy, Bath & North East Somerset 
 
 

Minutes 

1.  

Introduction from the Chair 
Richard Bonner welcomed everyone to the meeting and once again welcomed Cllr Duguid, Chair of 
Scrutiny Committee who will be attending LEP Board meetings as an observer. 
  
Apologies were noted. 

2.  Minutes of the meeting of 19th January 2022 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 19th January 2022 were then agreed as a correct record. 

3.  

Declaration of Interest 
The Chair reminded Board members that they had a responsibility to treat all proposals/projects equally 
and impartially and must therefore declare whether they or their organisation had either a direct or 
indirect interest in any of the projects to be considered by the Board.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 

Items for discussion 

4.  Step Fusion  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 

 

In response to an action from January’s LEP Board to share further details on the STEP Fusion 
programme, Richard Bonner welcomed and invited Andy Bates from Nuclear South West to take 
members through the Severn Edge proposal - A bid for this region to host the UK’s first fusion energy 
plant.  
 
Andy took members through the challenges ahead, including the need to de-carbonise to mitigate 
climate change and the role of nuclear and then gave an outline of the opportunities and next steps.  
 
We are one of five shortlisted sites around the UK and there is widespread alliance of support and co-
operation for the programme. There have been a number of successful public engagement events 
including drop-in sessions at Oldbury, Berkley and Thornbury and community webinars, all seeing 100+ 
people attend each event.   
 
The consensus from the Board was this is an exciting opportunity and Toby Savage reiterated that the 
project plays on our strengths as a region and although the site is in England, in terms of supply chain 
benefits [particularly from Welsh steel making] from an infrastructure project of this size has meant our 
colleagues in Wales are just as enthusiastic.     
 
An open discussion developed, and the following points were made: 
 The importance of understanding the selection criteria. Although not currently defined, there is 

likely to be an emphasis on levelling up 
 Members voiced the importance that skills will play - If successful it could potentially result in over 

30,000 jobs for the area. Therefore, a detailed mapping exercise around skills, jobs and accessibility 
will need to be developed. 

 There is a legacy from Hinckley as a lot of infrastructure was built around skills - FE colleges and HE 
sectors can provide an important platform to promote jobs in STEP.   

 
Observations around the topic of “nuclear” were also made. Noting that there will inevitably be 
objections to nuclear and we will encounter the negative argument. Andy stressed that to reduce this, 
engagement is key - it is important to understand what people are opposed to and the drop-in sessions 
are an opportunity to reach out to communities and hear any concerns. 
 
Along with engaging with communities close to the sites, there is also a need to understand the wider 
community. Due to the misconception of nuclear, developing a PR campaign around the energy crisis 
and to help people understand how nuclear could help. 
 

5.  

Levelling Up White Paper 
Government published the Levelling Up White Paper in early February and Richard highlighted the 
importance of identifying things that will be important to government and to us as a region. 
 
The White Paper highlights the value LEPs have created over the years. Government sees a valuable role 
for LEPs, working closely with their partners to provide independent business perspective. In a recent 
call Richard and Patricia had with Neil O’Brien the significance of the value created from our 
contribution was recognised. 
 
The Levelling Up White Paper made it clear that funding will flow through the UKSPF and those LEPs 
within Combined Authority areas will be integrated into the CA. Patricia therefore emphasised the need 
for Board members to think about governance arrangements, future of the LEP, what works well etc and 
setting up a LEP Board subgroup will help to shape and work through this. 
 
In discussion the following comments were noted: 
 our LEP is not coterminous with the CA. Careful thought and consideration is needed to ensure 

support and engagement continues across our functioning economic area including North Somerset.  
 A need to ensure the LEP’s activities and strategic direction benefits the citizens and businesses of 

the West of England 
 requirement for a structure that is lean and nimble, particularly with regards to governance. 

Page 4



 
 

 

 The LEP should be aligned to future funding programmes, particularly focussing on future 
opportunities linked to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

 Whilst we need to look back to reflect on the areas where we have been successful, we also want to 
capture opportunities for improvement - use these experiences to develop and grow to ensure we 
effectively address the regional challenges that are ahead of us 

 Being clear on how we interface with the Western Gateway, contributing and engaging where we 
have alignment and common interest – the STEP Fusion bid is a good example of effective 
collaboration. 

 A need to focus on delivery [both to programmes that we influence/lead, but also to major bids and 
opportunities - Freeport is an example where we could have been more effective] and focussing on 
the big challenges like decarbonisation and route to net zero, as well as securing inward investment 
and creating an effective pan regional transport network. 
 

Members also expressed the importance of engagement with key stakeholder to help broaden and 
strengthen relationships – creating a supported approach with a clear and unified voice. How do we 
create a consistent message, engage across our region, how do we debate and align on the issues of 
Levelling Up / Levelling Out? 
 
To note: A letter from Government setting out the details is expected imminently. 
 
ACTION: Board members supported the recommendation and a LEP subgroup will convene to help 
shape and respond to the government’s direction once we have received the letter advising on next 
steps. 

6.  

UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 
THE UKSPF is a £2.6bn funding stream to replace the EU structural funds and will be targeted in building 
pride in place, supporting high quality skills training and supporting pay, employment and productivity 
growth. 
 
We are still waiting further information from Government on the UKSPF, guidance and funding 
allocations are due to be published in the coming weeks. Members were therefore provided with high-
level headlines. 
 
 Ministers and officials have been clear that there is an ambition for the UKSPF to be more flexible 

than EU structural funds, enabling greater integration or alignment with other funding steams in the 
region. 

 £560m has been top sliced to fund a programme called Multiply, which is focused on boosting adult 
numeracy. 

 Investment priorities over the first 2 years will be around pride in place and the final year will have 
a focus on skills – supporting disadvantaged people and reducing levels of economic activity and 
move those furthest from the labour market closer to employment etc 

 
In discussion, the following points were noted: 
 We will look at refreshing the Local Industrial Strategy and bring various strands together, along 

with our evidence to develop a plan that will add value for our region, make a real difference and 
create jobs. 

 A forum for engagement will be created [potentially a LEP subgroup] to help work up what our ask 
will be.   

 To make sure the Unitary Authorities are involved in this process to ensure joined up working.   
 
ACTION: A framework on next steps and engagement to be created and shared with the LEP Board  

7.  

Appointment of LEP Business members  
A recruitment exercise to fill vacant positions on the Board has been run and 23 expressions of interest 
were received. The Business Nominations Committee [BNC] then shortlisted to 5 candidates for final 
interviews.  
The business nominations committee would like to recommend the appointment of two business 

Page 5



 
 

 

 
 

members for a term of three-years: 
 Ruth Jefferson, Wessex Water.  
 Nigel Costley, TUC  

 
Subject to circulating further details on the named candidates, the LEP Board provisionally agreed on the 
recommendations made.   

Items for information only 

8.  
Papers for June Committees 
Richard Bonner will be attending the WECA Committee and Joint Committee on the 8th April. Business 
members were asked to provide any feedback to Richard by Wednesday 6 April. 

9.  

AOB  
 Marvin Rees informed members that following a procurement process, City Leap have announced 

Ameresco Ltd as its strategic partner. The City Leap partnership is aimed at delivering low carbon 
energy infrastructure and when it lands has an opportunity to be a national exemplar in how you 
create new financial relationships to develop the pace and scale of change needed. 
 

 David Brown highlighted a jobs fair for Afghan resettlers happening on Friday 1 April, 4pm at the 
Mercure Hotel in Bristol. 

  
 Toby Savage gave members his thoughts on MIPIM – Although numbers were down, the event was 

vibrant, and the calibre of attendees was strong. It will be interesting to see if UKREiiF is a 
successful and going forward how do we want to take forward inward investment activities? 
ACTION: Inward Investment opportunities to be discussed at a future LEP Board meeting. 

Page 6



Agenda Item 4 
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership
Board meeting – 21.06.2022

Prem Goyal, City of London

Purpose of the report

1. To explore the opportunities for collaboration with the City of London, strengthening the
relations with the region and building links in areas of mutual interest.

Recommendation

2. LEP Board members and Prem Goyal [ ppendix 1] to discuss ways for the West of
England region to work closely with the City of London.

Background

3. Finance, legal and professional services produced over £4.3bn in the West of England in
2020. The sector employed 98,000 people, 16% of all workers in the region.

4. At the meeting we will highlight the key strengths of the West of England in relation to
financial and professional services. Prem Goyal will set out his role and that of the City of
London Corporation. Board members will have the opportunity to explore the potential
areas for collaboration.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



APPENDIX 1

Prem Goyal OBE JP

Biography

Prem Goyal OBE JP is an Alderman of the City of London. He also serves as a school
governor, a trustee for Shelter and is a Freeman of the Worshipful Company of Goldsmiths.

Prem is an Advisor to Hinduja Investments & Project Services, leading 11 business verticals
and outreach in 48 countries (https://www.hindujagroup.com). He is also a Senior Advisor on
the Economic and Commercial Diplomacy Advisory Group at the International Business and
Diplomatic Exchange (IBDE), a Council Member of the Federation of Indian Chambers of
Commerce and Industry (FICCI), a Member of the Chartered Institute for Securities &
Investment (CISI) International Committee and a Council Member at the London Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (LCCI).

Having been a professional engineer (PE) in the USA, Prem worked for investment banks
including Goldman Sachs and Deutsche Bank in New York, Tokyo, Zurich and London for 20
years, specialising in derivatives trading, risk management and internal audit.

In parallel, Prem launched Global Markets Consultants (GMC) in 2002 and has been its
CEO and CFO since then. GMC provided management consulting services, winning
Deutsche Bank’s coveted Preferred Supplier Status every year from 2005 to 2013. Having
closed GMC’s consulting business in 2013, Prem now manages its investments, financial
accounting, tax filings and CSR efforts.

Growing up in India, Prem had modest beginnings. He earned his bachelor’s degree from
the Indian Institute of Technology (IIT) before winning a scholarship for a Master’s in
Engineering at Clarkson University. Prem then obtained an MBA from UCLA and graduated
with the Dean’s Outstanding Student Award. He has also completed executive education at
Chicago Booth University.

Prem has travelled to c. 125 countries and was awarded an OBE for services to the
economy and promoting charitable giving in 2012.

Page 8



Agenda Item 5 
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership
Board meeting – 21.06.2022

Regional opportunities around sustainable energy generation, including hydrogen

Purpose of the report

1. To update on the regions emerging opportunities for sustainable energy as part of the 
approach to net zero. This includes early conclusions from a recent review undertaken 
on energy innovation opportunities by the Combined Authority. 
  

2. To provide some context to specific energy initiatives that Board members will update 
on, including hydrogen. 

3. To introduce a live case study on the Institute for Advanced Automotive Propulsion 
Systems (IAAPS), which will be presented at the Board meeting following this paper. 
There was an investment of £10M for IAAPS through the Local Growth Fund, 
administered by the Combined Authority. 

Recommendation

To note the current and emerging sustainable energy opportunities for the region. 

To comment on any sustainable energy areas which Board Members consider to be of 
particular relevance or importance for the region, including how the Combined Authority can 
best support these. 

Background 

Why sustainable energy is important

4. Developing cleaner and more affordable energy sources is required in order to achieve 
net zero and deliver energy security. Sustainable energy is part of the regions approach 
to achieve net zero by 2030 and beyond and is being progressed alongside other work, 
such as the South-West Net Zero Hub and the £50M West of England Green Recovery 
Fund including its first investment to make more homes energy efficient. 

5. The West of England Climate and Ecological Strategy and Action Plan identifies that to 
reach net zero we will need fully low carbon electricity. It includes a focus on increasing
renewable energy generation across the region and supporting new energy systems 
such as hydrogen, tidal, and battery storage. Further, the British Energy Security 
Strategy highlights the importance of investment and innovation in wind, new nuclear, 
solar and hydrogen, which could see 95% of electricity by 2030 being low carbon.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



How the West of England is innovating to deliver net zero

6. The West of England region is already innovating in the area of sustainable energy 
generation. In order to understand this more fully, and to identify areas where the 
Combined Authority can best support, the Strategy & Innovation Team has undertaken a 
desk top analysis looking at an initial nine energy areas: 

Green Hydrogen
Hydroelectric & Tidal
Offshore Wind
Nuclear Fission
Nuclear Fusion
Biofuels
Batteries
Energy Storage
Space Energy Initiative

7. Each of these energy sources were reviewed against their importance (ie putting the 
region on the map; securing decent jobs and training; tackling the climate emergency; 
key risks) and the need for support (ie is there an identified role for the CA; evidence of 
industry interest; costs of no CA involvement). Reviewing what is currently happening in 
the region was part of the assessment. 

8. The emerging conclusion is that there are a number of sustainable energy sources 
where the region could play a leading role, including: 

a. Green Hydrogen - Hydrogen is particularly suited to sectors where electrification is 
not feasible or is too costly, such as buses, HGVs, rail, maritime and aviation. There 
is growing support and investment around hydrogen in the wider South West, 
including through the industry-led South West Hydrogen Ecosystem Partnership 
which aims to develop the production, transport, storage and use of hydrogen. 
Industry is prioritising hydrogen, for example Airbus has recently announced it will 
launch a new research hub at its base near Bristol to develop hydrogen technologies 
as part of efforts to decarbonise aviation. The Digital Engineering, Technology & 
Innovation (DETI) programme has identified hydrogen as a key priority. 

b. Offshore wind – The Celtic Sea Cluster has been established with the vision to 
make the Celtic Sea the best place in the world to develop floating offshore wind. 
The Cluster has already reached out to Bristol Port and are seeking the support of 
the Combined Authority. The Combined Authority is actively working with the Welsh 
Government to understand collaboration opportunities. 

c. Space Energy Initiative – Space Based Solar Power is the concept of harvesting 
solar energy in space. Initial research has been undertaken and involved several 
West of England primes, including Frazer-Nash, CGI, Airbus and Thales Alenia 
Space, and aligns with the West of England Space Hub work. 

d. Nuclear Fusion – The Seven Edge bid to host one of the first Nuclear Fusion 
Prototype Powerplants (STEP) in South Gloucestershire has reached the final five 
with an announcement on the preferred bid expected soon. If this bid is successful, 
Fusion could become much more of a dedicated focus for the region. A key 

Page 10



advantage of Fusion is that it does not produce nuclear waste (unlike Nuclear 
Fission used in current Nuclear Power). 

The Institute for Advanced Automotive Propulsion Systems

9. Board Members will shortly receive a presentation on the Institute for Advanced 
Automotive Propulsion Systems (IAAPS), which has been partly funded by £10M 
through the Local Growth Fund, administered by the Combined Authority. IAAPS is 
based at the Bristol and Bath Science Park and will undertake research and innovation 
that will accelerate the transition from low carbon to zero carbon vehicles. 

10. Further, IAAPS has recently been awarded £2.5M from the UK Research Partnership 
Investment Fund (RPIF) to produce green hydrogen for its research and testing work. 
This new hydrogen production and storage facility is scheduled to become operational in 
Spring 2023.   

Author: Adam Hickman, Strategy & Innovation Team  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership
Board meeting – 21.06.2022

UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF)

Purpose of the report

1. To update the LEP Board on progress in the development of the West of England 
UKSPF investment plan. 

Recommendation

2. That the LEP Board provide feedback on the emerging West of England UKSPF 
investment plan and confirm they are in agreement to proposed priority outcomes the 
plan will seek to deliver. 

Background

3. UKSPF is a national fund that has been established as a successor to EU structural 
funds. All parts of the country have allocated funds to cover a three-year period 
(2022/23 – 2024/25) and have been asked to produce investment plans detailing the 
outcomes funds will deliver. Outcomes must align with overarching fund priorities that 
have been set by Government. In the West of England, the Combined Authority is the 
nominated lead Authority. In North Somerset, the Unitary Authority is leading investment 
planning. 

4. As Figure 1 shows, the West of England will receive (subject to investment plan 
approval) a £13,795,332 UKSPF allocation over three years. Compared to some places, 
this is a relatively limited funding allocation, choices will therefore need to be made on 
the specific interventions that can be funded via this route. A proportion of this is ring-
fenced for the Multiply programme and remaining funds must support three broad 
Government priorities (supporting communities, supporting local businesses, and 
supporting people build their skills). As Figure 1 shows, funding is back-loaded and skills 
investment is restricted to year three of the fund. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Regional engagement and co-design 
5. The LEP Board discussed UKSPF at their 30th March meeting and asked that work to 

develop the investment plan included discussion with Business Board members and that 
co-production with UA officers took place. Since the last full LEP Board discussion, we 
have:

Convened the LEP Business Board and identified potential priorities for the fund 
from the perspective of the business community. We have also met with the Skills 
Advisory Panel to ensure their views inform the investment plan. 

Met regularly with a range of UA officer groups to ensure the development of 
priority outcomes for the fund have been co-produced across the partnership.
UKSPF has been discussed with the Skills Officer Group, Economic 
Development Managers, Business & Skills Directors, and the Business and Skills 
Board (providing a route for elected member engagement). 

Opened an online consultation portal to ensure all stakeholders are able to 
provide views on potential UKSPF priorities. To date we have received over 20
submissions (a number from consortiums). This portal remains open. 

Sought input from the VCSE sector – with a webinar planned to take place 
shortly. 

Challenge to address through our investment plan 
6. Engagement to date has highlighted a range of challenges and opportunities that 

regional partners are keen UKSPF helps us address, including: 

Delivering support that helps to address the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on 
workers and organisations in sectors such as hospitality, tourism, and culture.
Output in the hospitality industry declined by 45% in 2020, and in arts and 
entertainment by 43%.

Encouraging people to return to town and city centres and supporting adaptations 
as these areas evolve. Since Covid workplace activity and retail footfall in the 
region are below pre-pandemic levels (20% & 15%).

Taking coordinated action to provide support to people, communities, and 
organisations in areas of high deprivation. 158,000 residents of the West of 
England live in neighbourhoods that rank in the most deprived fifth of places 
nationally.

Ensuring that residents and businesses across the region can benefit from a 
broad range of impactful pre-start-up, start up and growth services, aimed at 
business / job creation and increased productivity. Even before the pandemic, 
productivity in the region only grew by 0.2% in the five years to 2019, holding 
down wages.

Support efforts to tackle the climate emergency by decarbonising businesses and
increasing green innovation in the region. West of England businesses emitted 
26% the region’s CO2 emissions in 2019, and will need to fall by 10% of today’s 

Page 14



value each year. But green growth presents a significant opportunity, with the 
region is expected to need 45,000 green jobs by 2030 to reach net zero.
Support people to progress in their careers, while helping those not in work move 
into learning, training, and employment, by focusing on giving people the skills 
needed for the region’s economy i.e., green, and digital skills. 53,000 residents 
are unemployed or inactive and want work, and 17% of the region’s workers earn 
less than the Real Living Wage, even before the cost-of-living crisis.

Proposed investment plan priorities 

7. To help guide investment in line with the priorities above, partners have identified a set of 
outcomes it is proposed we focus on delivering through UKSPF investments. Figure two 
sets out proposed priority outcomes for the West of England that have been identified 
with regional partners. 

Figure 2: UKSPF West of England proposed priority outcomes 

Priority Theme Target Outcomes

Strengthen our 
communities and 
increase pride in 
place

Pride in 
place

Improved High Streets and local centres
Enhanced cultural offers
Increased visitor numbers 

Strengthened 
Communities 

Improved community infrastructure
Strengthened social fabric 

Support for local 
business

Productivity 
& business 
support 

Increased business productivity
Growth in social purpose organisations
More businesses engaged in new markets  

Innovation & 
green 
investment 

Increased green innovation  
Increased business innovation  

Supporting people 
to access the 
skills or training 
that will help them 
progress in their 
careers

Access 
opportunity & 
career 
progression

Residents progress in their careers
Address skills gaps

Support 
people 
towards 
learning, 
training & 
work

Reduce economic inactivity & long-term 
unemployment
Reduce NEET numbers 

Page 15



Multiply
The Multiply element of UKSPF is being managed via a separate investment plan (in line 
with Government requirements). Following engagement with a range of stakeholders
(including the Skills Advisory Panel), the following were identified as key areas of potential 
focus for the Multiply programme in the Combined Authority area: 

Focus 1: Innovative engagement project/s which target employed adults with low 
levels of numeracy skills to break down barriers and increase confidence in 
addressing these skills issues. These projects would then support participants to 
progress onto existing mainstream funded (i.e. Adult Education Budget or other 
government funded maths provision) numeracy courses at Level 1 and 2. 

Focus 2: Innovative engagement project/s which target unemployed adults with low 
levels of numeracy skills to break down barriers and increase confidence in 
addressing these skills issues. These projects would then support participants to 
progress onto existing mainstream funded (i.e. Adult Education Budget or other 
government funded maths provision) numeracy courses at Level 1 and 2. 

Focus 3: Funding to increase:

The number of staff who can teach maths in the region. This is likely to be 
achieved by providing funding for training (as opposed to wages).

The amount of classroom resources for maths teaching in the region.

Next Steps
8. The UKSPF investment plan will be finalised for submission to Government in line with 

the priorities above. It is anticipated funding will be released by Government in Autumn 
2022. 

9. A light-touch business case process will be put in place to ensure all investments are 
robust, aligned to the agreed regional priority outcomes we are seeking to deliver, and 
able to move into delivery as swiftly as possible.

10. The Multiply investment plan is running to an earlier submission date and is being 
finalised in line with the focus set out above. 

            

Page 16



Agenda Item 8
West of England Local Enterprise Partnership
Board meeting – Tuesday 21 June 2022

West of England Growth Hub – Annual Report Summary

Purpose of the report

1. To share an overview of the Annual Growth Hub report submitted to BEIS for the year 
2021/22. The report is designed for Combined Authorities and Local Enterprise 
Partnerships to show how core government funding has led to increased levels of take-
up of support and is helping to drive business growth.

Recommendation

For Board members to note the contents of the update and progress made in building the 
regional Growth Hub offer. 

Background 

2. The West of England Growth Hub, managed by the Combined Authority, is an integral 
part of our regional support for businesses, drawing together a wide range of 
interventions into a single coherent offer, guided by our Local Industrial Strategy.

3. In the 2021/22 reporting year, the Growth Hub delivered over 12,000 business 
interventions which included 3,859 medium and high intensity actions supporting 2,175 
businesses.  Compared to 20/21 this shows a 69% increase in intensive growth support.
The service has received 46,170 unique visitors to its revamped website, helped almost 
800 individuals start a business, and directed 2,078 businesses to a relevant skills or 
training programme (see Appendix 1 for more detail).

4. The Combined Authority has built additional resource to complement the Growth Hub 
offer, including through regional recovery funding which now stands at £20m. This has 
included a Cultural and Creative Recovery Programme (including targeted support for 
creative freelancers), Business Growth and Adaptions Grant, and an extension to our 
Low Carbon Challenge Fund, among other new strategic programmes and services. 

5. In addition, the West of England Productivity Challenge – a £5m investment blending 
core Growth Hub funding with Combined Authority Investment funding – established to
tackle low productivity (our “long tail”) by promoting the uptake of new technologies, 
innovation, improved management practices, cleaner business models, and export 
opportunities, has continued to deliver.

6. The £8m Workforce for the Future programme, has enhanced the Growth Hub’s skills 
and training offer to small businesses, including through ‘Share to Support’ – a regional 
service designed to encourage levy paying businesses to support the creation of new 
apprenticeship opportunities across their supply chains – this has already retained 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



£1.136m funds in the region and generated 100 apprenticeships. Alongside this core 
regional offer, the University Business Support programme – a ‘hub and spoke’ model of 
business support delivery between the Combined Authority and West of England Unitary 
Authorities – has helped extend the reach of core services into all parts of the region. 

All of these interventions are summarised in a refreshed Business Support Guide 

7. The Growth Hub has continued to develop key partnerships with local, regional and 
national stakeholders. The regional Business Insights Panel has been particularly 
valuable and was established to provide intelligence on ‘real time’ issues and 
opportunities impacting on the local economy. The Panel shares good practice and 
information on business support projects, services and initiatives being introduced and 
delivered in the West of England. Membership includes Business West, FSB, Visit West, 
Institute of Directors, ICAEW, British Business Bank and the main regional commercial 
banking leads.

8. An evaluation of the Growth Hub has shown that:

Business feedback about the Growth Hub services is very positive. Most businesses 
rate the support provided very highly, and many responses to surveys mention the 
quality of interactions with Growth Hub staff.

The Growth Hub provides support to thousands of businesses, and no business 
network or business support provider reported receiving any significant negative 
feedback. Despite the breadth of support offered, the perception of the Growth Hub 
is positive across the board.

The Growth Hub has pivoted more to high intensity support in the last year reflecting 
the impact of macroeconomic factors like the Covid-19 recovery. Growth Hub 
statistics show increases in medium and high intensity support and similar increases 
in referrals to skills, training, finance and funding courses.

50% of businesses that responded to the evaluation survey have experienced 
improvements in productivity or staffing as a result of the support. Some 
respondents describe the support having dramatic positive effects on their business, 
especially in the wake of Covid-19.

9. Despite this positive story, the Growth Hub faces ongoing challenges in maintaining the 
high-quality service which has been developed. BEIS has confirmed core funding for the 
2022/23 delivery year at 50% of the value of the last two years, which means certain 
aspects of our offer will need to be reduced. The CA is currently looking at alternative
funding sources to bridge this gap, including through the UK Shared Prosperity Fund. 
The reduction in funding and the absence of a longer-term funding settlement, does 
inhibit the ability of our services to focus more concertedly on the strategic issues that 
matter the most to our people and businesses.    

Page 18



10. Nevertheless, looking forward, the Growth Hub will play a key role in delivering on the 
West of England Metro Mayor’s priorities. This includes, for example, the Good 
Employment Charter - a new voluntary and free accreditation scheme, to ensure 
employers provide a more rewarding, inclusive, and sustainable work environment for all 
their employees. The new West of England Jobs Connect service has been established 
to help businesses develop an end-to-end recruitment approach to make it much easier 
to access the people they need to fill job vacancies. In addition, the new Climate and 
Ecological Strategy and Action Plan 2022, will support businesses and local people to
benefit from the growth in the green economy; maximising government investment in the 
region and supporting our businesses to grow, by tapping into new opportunities like 
renewable energy.

11. A range of Case Studies of how Growth Hub support has helped businesses to make
real changes and increase their resilience and growth prospects can be found here : 
https://www.westofengland-ca.gov.uk/case-studies/?cat=business-support  

Authors: Stephen Bashford, Antony Merritt, and Pearl Mills   

Page 19



APPENDIX 1: KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Annual Total 

(Apr 20 - Mar 21)
Annual Total 

Apr 21 – Mar 22

Number of businesses that have received ‘light touch’ 
triage, information and/or signposting support (excluding 
website traffic)

3,313 2,064

Number of individuals that have received ‘light touch’ triage, 
information and/or signposting support (excluding website 
traffic)

3,771 3,715

Total number of unique visitors to Growth Hub website
45,611 46,170

Number of businesses receiving ‘medium intensity’ 
information, diagnostic, and brokerage support. 1,097 1,643

Combined turnover (amount £) of businesses receiving 
‘Medium intensity’ information, diagnostic, and brokerage 
support.

£395,449,346 £520,610,468

Combined employee numbers (FTE) of businesses 
receiving ‘Medium intensity’ information, diagnostic, and 
brokerage support.

5,052 6,046

Number of businesses receiving ‘high intensity’ support e.g. 
account management / intensive support directly provided 
by the Hub or partner organisation. 

174 532

Combined turnover (amount £) of businesses receiving 
‘High intensity’ support i.e. sustained support and using 
significant Growth Hub resource.

£190,944,417 £714,576,201

Combined employee numbers (FTE) of businesses 
receiving ‘High intensity’ support i.e. sustained support and 
using significant Growth Hub resource.

2,482 7,817

Number of businesses receiving ‘Medium’ and ‘High 
intensity’ support that, have the opportunity, ambition, and 
greatest potential to grow (including Scale-Ups)

75 558

Total number of individuals who been helped to start a 
business. 383 799

Number of businesses referred to a mentoring programme 
(combined figure for ‘Medium’ and ‘High’ intensity 
interventions only)

226 199

Number of businesses referred to a skills or training 
programme (combined figure for ‘Medium’ and ‘High’ 
intensity interventions only)

559 2,078

Number of businesses referred to a finance and/or funding 
programme (combined figure for ‘Medium’ and ‘High’ 
intensity interventions only)

525 940

Number of businesses referred to an innovation and/or 
R&D programme (combined figure for ‘Medium’ and ‘High’ 
intensity interventions only). 

203 141

Number of referrals to an export/import support programme 
(e.g. DIT) (combined figure for ‘Medium’ and ‘High’ intensity 
interventions only).

336 92

Page 20


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2022
	4 Prem Goyal, Alderman from the City of London
	5 Regional opportunities around sustainable energy generation, including hydrogen
	6 UK Shared Prosperity Fund [UKSPF]
	8 West of England Growth Hub



